1995

# Golden Meadows, Inc., a Utah corporation v. Douglas B. Coons and Laura Coons : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys appeal the Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Agreement and Order Confirming Arbitration Award, entered on August 16, 1995 by the Honorable Jon M. Memmott of the Second Judicial District Court, Davis County, State of Utah. The Supreme Court has jurisdiction over this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-31a-19 (1985), and has transferred this appeal to the Court of Appeals pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §78-2a-3(2)(k) (1992).

### STATEMENT OF ISSUES OF APPEAL AND STANDARD OF REVIEW

#### A. Issues on Appeal

1. Whether the District Court erred in refusing to vacate the arbitration award on the grounds that the award was obtained by undue means and/or on the grounds that the arbitrator showed partiality, was guilty of misconduct that prejudiced the rights of any party or that the arbitrator exceeded his powers.

2. Whether the District Court erred in refusing to vacate the arbitration award due to the arbitrator's manifest disregard of the law.

3. Whether Golden Meadows is entitled to an award for interest, late fees, penalties, costs and attorney's fees as

a matter of law.

4. Whether Mrs. Crowley is entitled to an award of costs and attorney's fees as a matter of law.

5. Whether Mr. Coons is entitled to an award whatsoever, and if so whether the maximum amount to which Mr. Coons is entitled is \$5,000, as liquidated damages pursuant to the Real Estate Purchase Contract.

B. Standard of Review

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys are seeking this Court's review of the District Court's Order denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Agreement and Order Confirming Arbitration Award. The proper construction of UCA §78-31a-14, the Utah Arbitration Act, is a question of law. DeVore v. IHC Hospitals, Inc., 884 P.2d 1246,1251 (Utah 1994); State v. Larsen, 865 P.2d 1355, 1357 (Utah 1993); State v. James, 819 P.2d 781, 796 (Utah 1991). Questions of law are reviewed for correctness with no deference being given to a district court's conclusions. Ward v. Richfield City, 798 P.2d 757, 759 (Utah 1990).

**STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

A. Parties

**Golden Meadows, Inc.** ("Golden Meadows") is a Utah

corporation in good standing and is the holder of the construction loan obtained by Coons for the home that is the subject matter of this dispute.

**Debra Crowley** ("Mrs. Crowley") is Michael Crowley's wife and is the purchaser of the home that is the subject matter of this dispute pursuant to a Real Estate Purchase Contract.

**Michael Crowley** ("Mr. Crowley") is the husband of Debra Crowley and is also the President of Golden Meadows, Inc., which purchased the construction loan for the home in question. Michael and Debra Crowley will be collectively referred to as ("Mr. & Mrs. Crowley" and/or "the Crowleys").

**Douglas Coons** ("Mr. Coons") is a homebuilder, and at all times relevant herein was doing business as Douglas B. Coons Construction in Davis County, Utah.

**Laurie Coons** ("Mrs. Coons") is the wife of Douglas Coons. She is also a guarantor of a construction loan obtained by Douglas Coons for the purpose of constructing the home that is the subject matter of this dispute. Douglas and Laurie Coons will be collectively referred to as ("Mr. and Mrs. Coons")

**B. Nature of the Case**

In or about June, 1992, Douglas Coons secured a building lot at 35 South Viewcrest Drive, Bountiful, Utah. Mr. Coons is a home builder and earns his living by building and selling homes. At all times relevant hereunder, Mr. Coons did

business as a sole proprietor under the assumed name of Douglas B. Coons Construction. After securing the building lot, Mr. Coons obtained a construction loan from Zions Mortgage Company for the purpose of financing the construction a large, custom home on this lot for the specific purpose of selling the home. Mrs. Coons executed the Construction Loan Agreement as a guarantor. (A copy of the Construction Loan Agreement is found in the Addendum as Exhibit "A"). The construction loan was in the principal amount of \$179,000. In connection with the obtaining of the construction loan, Mr. Coons also executed a Trust Deed Note and a Trust Deed, securing payment of the indebtedness, and his wife, Mrs. Coons executed a guarantee of the Trustee Deed Note. (A copy of the Trust Deed Note along with a copy of the continuing guarantee are collectively found in the Addendum as Exhibit "B" and a copy of the Trust Deed is found in the Addendum as Exhibit "C").

Construction on the home progressed slowly and was enjoined by order of the Second Judicial District Court for a lengthy period of time due to Mr. Coons' refusal and failure to comply with the building restrictions running with the property and which were recorded in the Office of the Davis



County Recorder.<sup>1</sup>

By January, 1994, construction on the home had resumed and Mr. Coons began advertising it for sale. In January, 1994, Mrs. Crowley first looked at the home and in February, 1994, Mrs. Crowley agreed to purchase the home from Mr. Coons upon its completion for a total purchase price of \$335,000. The agreement for the purchase of the home is contained in a standard preprinted Real Estate Purchase Contract dated February 1, 1994 and in a seven (7) page hand-written Addendum dated February 3, 1994 and drafted by Mr. Coons. (A copy of the Real Estate Purchase Contract and seven page Addendum dated February 3, 1994 are found in the Addendum as "Exhibit "D)"). The purpose of the Addendum was to set forth the finish items, materials and allowances for the completion of the home. On or about February 28, 1994 the parties executed an additional three (3) page Addendum dated February 28, 1994, a copy of which is found in the Addendum as Exhibit "E". It was anticipated that the home would be completed and that closing thereon would occur on April 15, 1994.

At the time the Real Estate Purchase Contract and the Addenda thereto were executed, and at all times thereafter,

---

<sup>1</sup> Architectural Control Committee of Granada Hills No. 7, by and through its members, John E. Cawley, Richard R. Green and Steven R. Facer vs. Douglas Coons dba Doug Coons Construction, Civil No. 920700327, 2nd District Court, Davis County, State of Utah.

Mr. Coons held himself out as a licensed contractor. However, Mr. Coons contractor's license had expired long before on July 31, 1993 and was expired all during the time he was completing the Crowley's home.<sup>2</sup> Mr. Coons failed to pay the required license fee and had further failed to submit the required financial documents to the State of Utah which resulted in his license expiring. Mr. Coons operated without a license until he was caught. On September 2, 1994, more than a year since his license had expired, Mr. Coons was issued a citation for engaging in construction without a license. Mr. Coons admitted committing the offense and was assessed a fine. Upon payment of his fine and renewal fee his license was reinstated. (Copies of the Citation issued to Mr. Coons, along with copies of his Notice of Response, Administrative Hearing Report and pertinent pages of Mr. Weiler's deposition are collectively found in the Addendum as Exhibit "F").

Between February 1, 1994 and August 31, 1994, Mrs. Crowley spent in excess of \$90,000, in addition to the purchase price of the home, for improvements to the home and for which she sought credit from Mr. Coons. However, Mr.

---

<sup>2</sup> George Weiler, Bureau Manager of the Construction Trades Licensing Bureau, Division of Occupational and Professional Licensing, Department of Commerce, State of Utah testified that according to state licensing records over which he was a custodian, Mr. Coons' contractor's license expired July 31, 1993 and was not reinstated until September 16, 1994. (See Exhibit "F" in the accompanying Addendum).

Coons refused to give Mrs. Crowley any credit for these additional monies which she had spent on the home, resulting in disputes arising between the Crowleys and Mr. Coons regarding the type and quality of finish of the home, what allowances were to be included in the final purchase price as opposed to what were "extras" to be paid by Mrs. Crowley, as well as when closing would occur.

In July, 1994, Mr. Coons demanded that Mrs. Crowley immediately close on the purchase of the home despite the fact that construction was not yet completed on the home. When Mrs. Crowley refused to close prematurely Mr. Coons, by two letters, one dated July 22, 1994 and the other dated July 28, 1994, unilaterally declared a default of the Real Estate Purchase Contract and further declared that he was retaining Mrs. Crowley's \$ 5,000 earnest money deposit as liquidated damages. (Copies of these two letters are found in the Addendum as Exhibit "G"). Mr. Coons even went so far as to attempt to sell the home to a third-party, who turned out to be a business associate of his. (Copy of second Real Estate Purchase Contract is found in Addendum as Exhibit "H").

From June 26, 1992 to July 1, 1994, Mr. Coons sought and obtained extension of his construction loan from Zions Mortgage Company. (Copies of the 4 extension agreements are collectively found in the Addendum as Exhibit "I"). On August 15, 1994 Mr. Coons' 4th extension agreement on the

construction loan expired and the full amount of the loan of \$179,000 plus accrued interest was due and payable to Zions Mortgage Company. After August 15, 1994, Zions Mortgage Company did not issue any further extension agreements and Mr. Coons did not make his payment to Zions Mortgage Company when due on August 15, 1994, or at any time thereafter.

In order to protect her investment and interest in the home and to prevent Mr. Coons from selling it out from underneath her, Mrs. Crowley filed a Notice of Interest with the Davis County Recorder in August of 1994. On August 24, 1994, Golden Meadows purchased Mr. Coons' construction loan from Zions Mortgage Company, which was now in default for the sum of \$177,916.62. In connection therewith, Zions Mortgage Company assigned all of its interest in the Construction Loan Agreement, Trust Deed and Trust Deed Note to Golden Meadows. (Copies of Golden Meadows check and of Zions Mortgage Company's assignment are found collectively in the Addendum as Exhibit "J").

Golden Meadows commenced collection and foreclosure proceedings against the Coonses and the property respectively. On or about October 6, 1994, this action was commenced by Golden Meadows which filed a verified complaint against Mr. and Mrs. Coons for, among other things, their default on the construction loan. The Coonses filed an Answer and Counterclaim, making various allegations against Golden

Meadows. Shortly thereafter, the Coonses filed a Third-Party Complaint against Mr. and Mrs. Crowley, alleging among other things fraud, breach of title and sought to quiet title in the property. Brief discovery was conducted by the parties between October 1994 and December, 1994. The parties attempted to mediate their disputes, but to no avail, at which time the parties submitted the matter to arbitration. On December 22, 1994, a Notice of Arbitration and Stay of Proceedings was filed by counsel for Golden Meadows. The parties proceeded to arbitration without a formal arbitration agreement.

The arbitration proceedings commenced on February 14, 1995 and continued for the next three days. The parties did not retain the services of a court reporter and no formal record of the arbitration proceedings was maintained. An Arbitration Award dated February 24, 1995 was issued. Among other things is found that:

- 1) Mrs. Crowley had not breached the Real Estate Purchase Contract;
- 2) that Mr. Coons was an unlicensed contractor;
- 3) that Golden Meadows was the successor-in-interest to Construction Loan Agreement, Trust Deed Note and Trust Deed, having paid face value for them; and
- 4) at closing Golden Meadows was entitled to be paid the sum it paid to Zions bank when it purchased the construction

loan in question.

Subsequently the district court ordered the house to be sold with the proceeds therefrom being placed in escrow pending the ultimate resolution of the parties' disputes. From the escrowed funds, the district court authorized a withdrawal to pay the principal amount owed to Golden Meadows in full, as provided by the Arbitration Award. The remainder of the funds continue to be held in escrow.

Due to numerous and obvious omissions and errors, the parties filed requests for reconsideration and clarification with the arbitrator, resulting in three additional days of further proceedings and in the issuance of a Supplement to Arbitration Award dated May 1, 1995. The Supplement to Arbitration Award only addressed the credits due the respective parties and failed to address any other issue. Defects and deficiencies continue to exist in the Arbitration Award and Supplemental to Arbitration Award. (Copies of the Arbitration Award and Supplement to Arbitration Award are collectively found in the Addendum as Exhibit "K"). Golden Meadows and the Crowleys timely filed a Motion to Set Aside Arbitration Agreement or in the Alternative, Motion to Vacate and/or Modify Arbitration Award and a supporting memorandum.

On August 16, 1995 an Order Denying Motion to Vacate or Modify Arbitration Agreement and Order Confirming Arbitration Award was entered. (A copy of the Order is found in the

Addendum as Exhibit "L"). On September 15, 1995 Golden Meadows and the Crowleys timely filed their Notice of Appeal.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that the Arbitration Award and the Supplement to Arbitration Award must be vacated by this Court. The basis for the vacation is two-fold. First Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that by virtue of the arbitrator's Award and Supplement being in direct contradiction of the law, the arbitrator exceeded his powers, showed partiality, engaged in misconduct prejudicial to the rights of the parties and demonstrating the award was procured by undue means, and must be vacated pursuant to UCA §78-31a-14. Second, Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that the arbitrator demonstrated a manifest disregard of the law requiring vacation of the Arbitration Award and Supplement to Arbitration Award pursuant to common law and case law.

The specific reversible errors of law which the arbitrator committed are:

- 1) failing to award Golden Meadows its interest, late fees and penalties and its costs and attorney's fees even though these were all provided for by the terms and conditions of the Construction Loan Agreement, Trust Deed and Trust Deed

Note which were legally assigned to Golden Meadows, and to which Golden Meadows was legally entitled, particularly since there was no finding that Golden Meadows was in breach of any of the terms and conditions of these documents, and since Mr. Coons had defaulted on the Construction Loan Agreement and Trust Deed Note;

2) failing to award Mrs. Crowley her costs and attorney's fees even though these were provided for by the terms and conditions of the Real Estate Purchase Contract to the prevailing party, which the arbitrator found her to be Mrs. Crowley on the issue of breach;

3) awarding Mr. Coons any amount whatsoever since he was an unlicensed contractor at the time the contract was entered into and at the time the alleged cause of action arose, and by law was prohibited from commencing or maintaining any action whatsoever, let alone collecting any sum as a result thereof, and since he had already defaulted on the Construction Loan and Trust Deed Note. In the alternative, awarding Mr. Coons any amount over \$5,000 since he elected to forego any additional sums, having elected to retain Mrs. Crowley's \$5,000 earnest money deposit as liquidated damages, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Real Estate Purchase Contract.



## ARGUMENT

### POINT I:

#### THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO VACATE THE ARBITRATION AWARD AND SUPPLEMENT TO ARBITRATION TO AWARD PURSUANT TO UCA §78-31a-14

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that the District Court erred in refusing to vacate the arbitration award pursuant to UCA §78-31a-14 on the grounds that the award was obtained by undue means and/or on the grounds that the arbitrator showed partiality, was guilty of misconduct that prejudiced the rights of any party or that the arbitrator exceeded his powers.

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys recognize at the outset the long-standing policy of Utah law that favors arbitration as a speedy and inexpensive method of adjudicating disputes. Allred v. Educators Mut. Ins. Ass'n, 909 P.2d 1263, 1265 (Utah 1995); DeVore v. IHC Hospitals, Inc., 884 P.2d 1246, 1251 (Utah 1994); Utility Trailer Sales of Salt Lake, Inc. v. Fake, 740 P.2d 1327, 1329 (Utah 1987); Robinson & Wells, P.C. v. Warren, 669 P.2d 844, 846 (Utah 1983); Giannopoulos v. Pappas, 80 Utah 442, 449, 15 P.2d 353, 356 (1932). Relying upon the public policy and law in support of arbitration, Utah courts have, as a general rule, limited their judicial review of arbitration awards confirmed pursuant to the Act to those grounds and procedures provided for under the act. Allred, at 909 P.2d

1263, 1265; DeVore, at 884 P.2d 1247, 1251.

Utah Code Annotated §78-31a(14) provides that:

"(1) Upon motion to the court by any party to the arbitration proceeding for vacation of the award, the court shall vacate the award if it appears:

(a) the award was procured by corruption, fraud, or other undue means;

(b) an arbitrator, appointed as a neutral, showed partiality, or an arbitrator was guilty of misconduct that prejudiced the rights of any party;

(c) the arbitrators exceeded their powers;

(d) the arbitrators refused to postpone the hearing upon sufficient cause shown, refused to hear evidence material to the controversy, or otherwise conducted the hearing to the substantial prejudice of the rights of a party; or

(e) there was no arbitration agreement between the parties."

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys each contend that the Arbitration Award should be vacated pursuant to subsections (a), (b) and (c) above on the grounds the arbitrator exceeded his powers, showed partiality and/or because the award was procured by undue means, by virtue of his issuing an Arbitration Award and Supplement to Arbitration Award in direct conflict to long established legal principles. It has been determined that an arbitrator exceeds his powers when he grants an award contrary to established law. Leechburg Area School Dist. v. Leechburg Ed. Ass'n, 380 A.2d 1203, 1205 (Pa.1977). Likewise manifest infidelity to what the arbitrator knows to be the law but which he deliberately disregards may be regarded as the use of "undue means"

or "partiality" within the statutes authorizing the vacating or modifying of an arbitration award. San Martine Compania De Navegacion S.A. v. Saguenay Terminals, Ltd., 293 F.2d 796 (9th Cir. 1961).

This Court is being asked to review gross errors of law that are readily apparent from the face of the Arbitration Award. When, as in this case, the arbitrator not only failed to apply the law, but ignored the law in order to fashion his own "equitable" remedy, the subjective rights of the parties have been prejudiced, requiring action by this Court. Obviously, understanding, but blatantly refusing to follow the law is evidence that the arbitrator exceeded his powers by ruling beyond the boundaries of the law, is evidence of partiality or misconduct which prejudices the rights of the victimized party, demonstrates that the award procured with undue means, thus satisfying the statutory standards set forth above for setting aside an arbitration award.

Specific examples of the law the arbitrator blatantly ignored include:

- 1) The arbitrator ignored the clear language of the construction loan documents and ignored construing case law in refusing to award Golden Meadows its interest, late fees and penalties after the arbitrator had already awarded Golden Meadows its principal;

- 2) The arbitrator ignored the clear language of the construction loan documents and ignored the construing case law in

refusing to award Golden Meadows its costs and attorney's fees;

3) The arbitrator ignored the clear language of the Real Estate Purchase Contract and ignored the construing case law in refusing to award Mrs. Crowley her costs and attorney's fees;

3) The arbitrator ignored the clear language of the §58-55-604 of the Utah Construction Trades Licensing Act and the supporting case law which prohibits unlicensed contractors from commencing or maintaining any action for collection or compensation;

4) The arbitrator ignored the clear language of the Real Estate Purchase Contract, ignored Mr. Coons' letters and ignored the corresponding case law in awarding Mr. Coons any sum above \$5,000 which remedy he had previously elected as liquidated damages.

#### POINT II:

THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO VACATE THE  
ARBITRATION AWARD AND SUPPLEMENT TO ARBITRATION TO  
AWARD PURSUANT TO THE JUDICIALLY-CREATED STANDARD OF  
"MANIFEST DISREGARD OF THE LAW"

Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that the District Court erred in refusing to vacate the arbitration award pursuant to the judicially-created standard of "manifest disregard of the law" on the grounds that the arbitrator, knowingly disregarded the law on several points in his Arbitration Award and Supplement to Arbitration Award.

In addition to the provisions of the arbitration act cited

above, Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that this Court can and should vacate an arbitration award when it appears obvious from the face of the award that the arbitrator exhibited "manifest disregard for the law", as was done in this matter. Golden Meadows and the Crowleys acknowledge that to date, it appears that Utah has not adopted this proposed standard. Allred, at 909 P.2d 1263, 1265; DeVore, at 884 P.2d 1247, 1251. Nevertheless, Golden Meadows and the Crowleys are unaware of any Utah case which affirmatively rejects this standard, and Golden Meadows and the Crowleys submit that the State of Utah and this Court should now accept this standard.

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