1995

Golden Meadows, Inc., a Utah corporation v. Douglas B. Coons and Laura Coons : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING TO VACATE THE ARBITRATION AWARD AND SUPPLEMENT TO ARBITRATION AWARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 78-3- 1(a)-14, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED.

Golden Meadows and Crowleys have appealed this matter based upon the fact that the Honorable Judge Jon M. Memmott, District Court, Second Judicial District, Davis County, erred in refusing to vacate the Arbitration Award entered by the Honorable Gordon R. Hall on February 25, 1995, and Supplement to Arbitration Award on May 1, 1995. Judge Memmott set forth in his Order Denying the Motion to Vacate and Order Confirming Arbitration Award, the following issues. A copy of the Order is attached as Exhibit D.

1. The arbitrator did not exceed his powers nor did the arbitrator manifestly disregard the law on issues presented to the arbitrator.
2. The Arbitration Award and supplement thereto are within the legal parameters that the parties pled
3. The Arbitration Award and supplement thereto did not exceed the powers of the arbitrator.
4. The clear intent of Utah Supreme Court is that the Utah Arbitration Act be narrowly construed and that the legislative intent of the act should be strictly followed. The Court did not feel it was appropriate to create additional standards for modification of the Arbitration Award.
5. A number of issues presented required discretion and judgment on the part of the arbitrator. Those issues were factually sensitive and as a matter of law the Court could not find that there had been any miscalculation of the law.

The longstanding policy in Utah favors arbitration as a speedy and inexpensive method of adjudicating disputes. Allred v. Educators Mut. Ins. Ass'n., 909 P.2d 1263, 1265 (Utah 1995); DeVore v. IHC Hospitals, Inc., 884 P.2d 1246, 1251 (Utah 1994); Robinson & Wells, P.C. v. Warren, 669 P.2d 844, 846 (Utah 1983). Because of the public policy and law in support of arbitration, the Utah Courts have limited their judicial review for arbitration to Utah Code Ann. § 78-31a(14) (1953) which provides as follows:

(1) Upon motion to the Court by any party to the arbitration proceedings for vacation of the award, the Court shall vacate the award if it appears:

(a) the award was procured by corruption, fraud or other undue means;

(b) an arbitrator, appointed as a neutral, showed partiality, or an arbitrator was guilty of misconduct that prejudiced the rights of any party;

(c) the arbitrators exceeded their powers;

(d) the arbitrators refused to postpone the hearing upon sufficient cause shown, refused to hear evidence material to the controversy, or otherwise conducted the hearing to a substantial prejudice of the rights of a party; or

(e) there was no arbitration agreement between the parties.

Appellants contend that the arbitrator violated subsections (a), (b) and (c) in that the arbitrator exceeded his powers, showed partiality and/or because the award was procured by **undue means**, by issuing an award in direct conflict with the long established legal principles; that the arbitrator deliberately disregarded the law and as a result showed partiality.

Appellants further argue that the arbitrator (1) ignored the clear language of the construction loan documents and refusing to award Golden Meadows interest late fees and penalties, costs and attorney's fees; (2) the arbitrator ignored the clear language of the real estate purchase contract refusing appellant, Mrs. Crowley, her costs and attorney's fees; (3) the arbitrator ignored the clear language of Section 58-55-604 of the Utah Construction Trade and Licensing Act in not prohibiting an unlicensed contractor from commencing or maintaining an action to collect compensation; and (4) the arbitrator ignored the clear language of the Real Estate Purchase Contract in awarding Mr. Coons any amount above \$5,000.

When the Honorable Gordon R. Hall issued his Arbitration Award he stated that a failure to close the home on April 15, 1994, did not constitute a breach since there was no firm date for

closing. Appellants would like you to believe that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall ruled that Mr. and Mrs. Crowley did not breach the contract, but that Mr. Coons breached the contract. The Honorable Gordon R. Hall never did rule there was any breach of the contract by either party.

The Honorable Gordon R. Hall set forth in his Award that both parties had expressed their desire and specifically requested that equity be done between them and that indeed the circumstances of this case lend themselves well to equitable remedies.

Based upon the Honorable Gordon R. Hall's Award, there was no breach of either party; therefore, neither party is entitled to costs or attorney's fees. The Honorable Gordon R. Hall also held in the Award that the value of the home had escalated significantly subsequent to the Real Estate Purchase Contract being entered into; therefore, Appellants were compensated.

The Honorable Gordon R. Hall did not ignore the clear language of Section 58-55-604 of Utah Construction Trades Licensing Act. Judge Hall addressed that issue in his Award stating that,

Seller [Douglas Coons] was without a valid contractor's license due to inadvertence in the non-payment of a renewal fee; however, Seller [Douglas Coons] did not act as a contractor for Buyer in construction of the house. Rather he [Douglas Coons] was the owner and built the house on speculation or for his own occupancy. He is, therefore, not precluded from enforcing the terms of the contract of sale. Arbitration Award, pg. 2.

Appellants further argue that the Arbitrator ignored the clear language of the Real Estate Purchase Contract in awarding Mr. Coons any sum above \$5,000 which was the remedy for liquidated damages.

Pursuant to a letter dated July 22, 1994, addressed to Mrs. Crowley and signed by Douglas B. Coons, Third-Party Defendants confirmed they no longer wanted to purchase the

home. A copy is attached as Exhibit E. That was confirmed by Robert F. Babcock, attorney, representing Mr. Coons in a letter addressed to Mrs. Crowley dated July 28, 1994, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit F.

Appellants completely missed the point in suggesting that the Arbitrator ignore the clear language of the Real Estate Purchase Contract. If Mr. Coons was to receive the \$5,000 as liquidated damages, Mr. Coons would have maintained ownership of the home and been entitled to all appreciation on the home together with the \$5,000 liquidated damages. In paragraph 16 of the Real Estate Purchase Contract, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, states:

DEFAULT. If Buyer defaults, Seller may elect to either retain the Earnest Money Deposit as liquidated damages or to return the Earnest Money Deposit and sue Buyer to enforce Seller's rights. If Seller defaults, in addition to return of the Earnest Money Deposit, Buyer may elect to either accept from Seller as liquidated damages, a sum equal to the Earnest Money Deposit, or to sue Seller for specific performance and/or damages. If Buyer elects to accept the liquidated damages, Seller agrees to pay the liquidated damages to Buyer upon demand. Where a Section of this Contract provides a specific remedy, the parties intend that the remedies shall be exclusive regardless of rights which might otherwise be available under common law.

POINT II

THE DISTRICT COURT DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING TO VACATE THE ARBITRATION AWARD AND SUPPLEMENT TO ARBITRATION AWARD PURSUANT TO THE JUDICIALLY-CREATED STANDARD OF "MANIFEST DISREGARD OF THE LAW."

Appellants argue that the District Court erred in refusing to vacate the Arbitration Award pursuant to the judicially-created standard of "manifest disregard of the law" and that the arbitrator knowingly disregarded the law in several points in the Arbitration Award and Supplement thereto.

Appellants acknowledge that Utah has not adopted such a standard. Allred, 909 P.2d 1263, 1265; DeVore, 884 P.2d 1247, 1251. Appellants are suggesting that the Court adopt a new standard. It would be improper for the Court to adopt a different standard than that which has been followed since the inception of arbitration in the State of Utah. The intent of the legislature in the State of Utah when it adopted the Arbitration Act was that the Judicial Review of Arbitration Award be limited to those grounds and procedures provided in the Act and whether the arbitration proceedings were fair and honest and whether the substantial rights of the parties were respected.

Appellants argue that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall undermined and ignored the law in this matter, that he further had a manifest disregard for the law.

It would be difficult to assume that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall does not understand that law, that he was inattentive or misapplied the law. In fact, Appellants go so far as to say that the record revealed that the arbitrator clearly understood the law, but deliberately disregarded the law.

The only record that is available in this case would be the pleadings, memorandums and any other documents filed with the District Court. There was no record made of the proceedings before the Honorable Gordon R. Hall.

In the Allred case, the Court ruled:

In order to serve that policy and achieve its objective, judicial review of arbitration awards should not be pervasive in scope or susceptible to repetitive adjudications, but should be limited to the statutory grounds and procedures for review.

As a general rule, awards will not be disturbed on account of irregularities or informalities or because the Court does not agree with the award, so long as the

proceedings have been fair and honest and the substantial rights of the parties have been respected. Allred, 909 P.2d 1263, 1265.

In reviewing the Arbitration Award and supplement thereto, it is obvious that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall understood the facts and law and thus rendered an award. The intent of the Honorable Gordon R. Hall's Award is that the parties complete the contract as agreed. In fact, the Honorable Gordon R. Hall stated that the parties shall fully cooperate in scheduling, coordinating, performing and completing the work on the house and closing the sale within the next 30 days. Because Appellants Michael E. Crowley and Debra Crowley failed and refused to follow the Arbitration Award and Supplement thereto and close on the house as set forth therein, Mr. Coons has been damaged in that he has had to pay additional property taxes, utilities, fire insurance and interest on a signature loan.

Appellants quote several cases that are not applicable in this matter. It is Appellees' **opinion** and position that the Utah law has been clearly established regarding arbitration and that the Court should continue to follow the same standard.

Arbitration was entered into at the request of Appellants because of the language in the Trust Deed and Note. The Trust Deed Note, Exhibit G, states,

ARBITRATION DISCLOSURE: Arbitration is usually final and binding on the parties and subject only to a very limited review by a court.

The parties are waiving their right to litigate in court including their right to a jury trial, pre-arbitration discovery is generally more limited and different from court proceedings. Arbitrator awards are not required to include factual findings or legal reasoning and any parties right to appeal or to seek modifications of rulings by arbitrators is strictly limited.

When Appellants desired arbitration, they realized or should have realized that it was limited and that the award is usually final and binding and subject only to very limited review by a Court.

POINT III

MRS. CROWLEY IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN AWARD OF COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES.

Appellants argue that Mrs. Crowley prevailed in this matter. The Arbitration Award does not indicate that Mrs. Crowley prevailed; therefore, she is not entitled to any attorney's fees or any costs associated therewith. The arbitrator ruled that neither party breached the contract.

POINT IV

GOLDEN MEADOWS IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN AWARD FOR INTEREST, LATE FEES AND PENALTIES FOR ITS COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES.

The Honorable Gordon R. Hall was very well aware of the loan that Golden Meadows had purchased from Zions Mortgage Co. Mr. and Mrs. Crowley and Golden Meadows are basically one and the same in that Mr. and Mrs. Crowley own Golden Meadows and/or are officers of Golden Meadows.

Appellants state "it is undisputed that Mr. Coons was in breach and default of the terms and conditions of the Construction Loan Agreement and Trust Deed Note as of August 15, 1994." (Page 24, Brief of Appellants) the Honorable Gordon R. Hall never ruled that Mr. Coons was in breach or in default of the terms and conditions of the Construction Loan Agreement, and in fact he ruled Buyers (Crowleys) were to forego interest or any other sums deemed to have accrued in connection with the construction loan.

POINT V

MR. COONS IS ENTITLED TO AN AWARD EVEN THOUGH HIS LICENSE HAD EXPIRED.

The Honorable Gordon R. Hall addressed that issue very adequately in the Award wherein Judge Hall states that Seller (Mr. Coons) did not act as a contractor for Buyer in the construction of the house, that Mr. Coons was the owner and built the house on speculation or for his own occupancy. The Honorable Gordon R. Hall therefore determined that Mr. Coons was not precluded from enforcing the terms of the contract.

Appellants are evidently suggesting that Appellants receive the property as a gift from Mr. Coons. Appellants are desirous of obtaining a windfall by forcing Mr. Coons to transfer title to the home to Mr. and Mrs. Crowley without compensation.

POINT VI

MR. COONS IS ENTITLED TO RECEIVE AN AWARD IN EXCESS OF \$5,000.

As stated above, the Real Estate Purchase Contract sets forth the fact that if Mr. Coons received the \$5,000 Earnest Money as liquidated damages, Mr. Coons would continue to own the home and Mr. and Mrs. Crowley would be relieved of any further responsibility or liability whatsoever in purchasing the home. Mr. Coons would then be able to sell the home and receive the appreciated value.

POINT VII

APPELLEES ARE ENTITLED TO AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS

It is Appellees' position that Appellants had no meritorious claim in this matter, that the appeal is frivolous, and as a result, Appellees should be awarded attorney's fees for costs incurred in the appeal. Porco v. Porco, 752 P.2d, 365, p. 368.

POINT VIII

BURDEN OF PROOF IS ON APPELLANTS TO SHOW ARBITRATOR DISREGARDED THE LAW

The burden of proof is on Appellants to show that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall exceeded his powers, showed partiality, engaged in misconduct which prejudiced the rights of the parties and that the award was procured by undue means. Appellants have failed to show there was any reasonable means by which the Honorable Gordon R. Hall showed any disregard of the law. Arbitrators are presumptively able to interpret contracts, and know the law, and it is upon Appellants to show disregard of the law in this matter. In this case, there is no proof that the Honorable Gordon R. Hall disregarded the law.

In 4 Am. Jur.2d, Section 234, Page 259, Section XII (Vacating or Correcting the Award) it states:

An award will not be held invalid under the common law merely because unjust, inadequate, excessive, or contrary to law. Nothing in the award relative to the merits of the controversy as submitted, however wrongly decided is grounds for setting it aside. An award will not be set aside merely because the arbitrators did not follow strict legal rules in hearing and deciding the case, unless they were required by the submission or by statute to follow such rules.

It is the general rule that, unless restricted by the agreement of submission, arbitrators are the final judges of both law and fact. Pg. 259, 260, 261

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT